
Camberwell Community Council
Wednesday 21 September 2016

7.00 pm
Employment Academy, 29 Peckham Road, London SE5 8UA

Theme: Young People in Camberwell

Membership

Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Mark Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well 
as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Tim Murtagh on 020 7525 7187  or email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 13 September 2016

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Camberwell Community Council
Wednesday 21 September 2016

7.00 pm
Employment Academy, 29 Peckham Road, London SE5 8UA

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda.

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. MINUTES 1 - 7

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 
2016.

6. YOUNG PEOPLE IN CAMBERWELL

Councillor Victoria Mills, Cabinet Member for Children and Schools to 
introduce the theme item.

Health & Wellbeing of Young People in Camberwell – presentation by 
Kirsten Watters, Consultant in Public Health.

Young People to discuss their experiences of living in Camberwell.



Item No. Title Page No.

7. YOUTH SERVICES CONSULTATION QUESTIONNAIRE

Jess Leech, Community Engagement Manager, to present an overview of 
the consultation.

8. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATE

Local Police Team to present with a focus on issues affecting young 
people.

9. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

- Southwark’s Youth Community Councils
- SE5 Forum, update on vision for Camberwell
- Old Kent Road Area Action Plan
- Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) Capital Programme 2017-18 launch
- Update on the design for Brunswick Park CGS project 
- Local Faith Directory
- Go on Southwark
- Any other community announcements

BREAK - OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO TALK TO 
COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

10. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 8 - 9

Deputation request – Parking in St. Francis Road

11. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

This is an opportunity for questions to be addressed to the chair.

Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the council has powers or duties. Responses 
may be supplied in writing following the meeting.

12. COMMUNITY COUNCILS HIGHWAYS CAPITAL INVESTMENT FOR 
2015-16 AND 2016-17

10 - 15

Note: This is an execution function for decision by the community council.

13. LOCAL TRAFFIC AND PARKING AMENDMENTS 16 - 37

Note: This is an execution function for decision by the community council.

Members to approve for implementation the local traffic and parking 
amendments, detailed in the appendices to the report, subject to the 
outcome of any necessary statutory consultation and procedures.



Item No. Title Page No.

14. EDMUND STREET AND NEARBY STREETS - RECONFIGURATION OF 
EXISTING PARKING ARRANGEMENTS

38 - 86

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

15. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY

Each community council may submit one question to a council assembly 
meeting that has previously been considered and noted by the community 
council.

Any question to be submitted from a community council to council 
assembly should first be the subject of discussion at a community council 
meeting. The subject matter and question should be clearly noted in the 
community council’s minutes and thereafter the agreed question can be 
referred to the constitutional team.

The community council is invited to consider if it wishes to submit a 
question to the ordinary meeting of council assembly on 30 November 
2016.

Date:  13 September 2016



INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

CONTACT: Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 7187 or 
email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk 
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information.

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS 
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer.
Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting. 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting. 

DEPUTATIONS
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer. 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7187. 

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/


Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

Camberwell Community Council
MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Monday 11 July 2016 at 
7.00 pm at The Albrighton Centre, 37 Albrighton Road, London SE22 8AH 

PRESENT: Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Ian Wingfield

OFFICER
SUPPORT:

Michelle Normanly (Environment and Leisure) 
Alex Rozema (Environment and Leisure)
Tom Buttrick (Planning Policy)
Grace Semakula (Community Council Development Officer)
Gerald Gohler (Constitutional Officer)

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 

The chair welcomed councillors, residents and officers to the meeting. 

2. APOLOGIES 

There were apologies for absence from Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle and Councillor Mark 
Williams. 

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

The chair drew the meeting’s attention to the supplementary agenda No.1 containing a 
report on a deputation request, which had been circulated prior to the meeting. 

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 

There were none. 

1
Agenda Item 5



Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

5. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2016 be agreed as a correct record of 
that meeting.

The chair said that some of the items raised at previous meetings, which would be picked 
up tonight were:

 Safety on local buses – TfL were in attendance to feed back on that.
 

 Improving waste collection in Camberwell Town Centre - Councillor Ian Wingfield, 
cabinet member for environment and public realm, said that a pilot in Walworth, in 
which waste was only put out in the street for collection at very limited times of the 
day had been completed successfully. The council was now looking to extend this 
to Rye Lane, and Camberwell would be next after that. 

 Pocket spaces – the work on these small spaces in the centre of Camberwell was 
scheduled to be completed by the end of the financial year.

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 

The community council received a petition from local residents of Bushey Hill Road, 
Crofton Road, Gairloch Road, Linnell Road, Oswyth Road and Shenley Road regarding 
reopening a consultation by Southwark Council about implementing a controlled parking 
zone (CPZ) in these roads. James Waller, the spokesperson of the group, outlined that 
there had previously been opposition to a CPZ, but that parking pressure in the named 
streets had increased significantly since, especially from commuters using Denmark Hill 
station. This had had a negative impact on many residents in the roads who were now 
unable to find parking spaces in the daytime. There were security concerns because of 
motorists breaking the 20mph speed-limit in order to secure a parking spot before another 
motorist, which often also led to altercations. For these reasons the petition called for the 
CPZ consultation to be reopened, and for one to be introduced, if the outcome of the 
consultation was positive.   

Councillors thanked the group submitting the petition and echoed residents’ concerns 
about the quality of life of residents. The chair said that feedback on the proposal for a 
CPZ in the wider area, which included the above streets, was sought from councillors 
under agenda item 7. Councillors reminded the meeting that, if this was agreed and the 
outcome of the consultation was positive, the introduction of the CPZ would still be some 
time away, probably a year. The meeting heard that a two-hour operation of the CPZ 
would be sufficient to deter commuters using the streets to park.      

The community council then received a deputation request from local residents regarding 
the proposed development of Brunswick Park play ground. The deputation request read: 

“A group of residents living around Brunswick Park have concerns about the  proposed 
development of the playground. Those concerns are that a significant proportion of the 
park will be cut off to the largest number of users with the closing of the present circular 
route used hundreds of times every week. The alternative is detrimental to the historic 
layout and atmosphere of the park and most of us that use it every day. We are not 

2



Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

against having upgraded safe facilities for children, we just want the development kept to 
the current playground area.”

Keith Doyle, the group’s spokesperson, explained that the deputation was not opposed to 
improving the park. However, a large number of people used the circular route around the 
park, and the proposals would cut off 20% of the park. The resulting decrease in footfall 
would encourage anti-social behaviour on the north side, and would also get rid of a safe 
way through the park. There was no need to maximise the play area, the pathway should 
be kept. 

Concerns about the methodology of the consultation were expressed. The meeting heard 
that the survey was biased towards positive responses to the changes, as it used closed 
questions, and the friends of Brunswick Park had not been consulted. 

The community council noted the deputation.
 
The chair pointed out that under item 16, the community council were only asked to make 
comments about the general principle of releasing the Section 106 funding, not the details 
of the scheme. 

Michelle Normanly, from Environment and Leisure, told the meeting that no decision had 
been made, and that a number of on-site events would still be taking place. Comments 
would be taken on board and she would be happy to come back to a future community 
council meeting with the consultation feedback. She asked the representatives of Friends 
of Brunswick Park to come and see her to discuss how they could be involved in the 
consultation. Based on the feedback, officers would go back a step in the process. She 
invited people to look at the plans online and to join the mailing list.   

7. CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE IN PECKHAM ROAD SOUTH AREA 

Councillors considered the information contained in the report. 

RESOLVED:  

That the community council endorses the proposed consultation boundary and methods to 
review parking arrangements within a network of streets to the south of Peckham Road 
between the existing ‘B’, ‘L’ and ‘LG’ controlled parking zones (CPZs) and to the north of 
the railway line.

8. TRANSPORT FOR LONDON FOCUS ON BUSES 

The chair said that in previous meetings, concerns had been raised about the 42 and 484 
buses, and about the behaviour of some bus drivers regarding older passengers, or those 
with mobility problems getting on and off the buses. He welcomed George Marcar and 
Steve Kearns from Transport for London (TfL). 

George Marcar told the meeting that while the punctuality of buses had improved, this 
sometimes caused drivers to start driving before passengers had sat down, or not pulling 
up all the way to the kerb. These issues would be addressed. All 8,500 buses were now 
low floor vehicles. By the end of 2016, 95% of bus stops would be accessible. TfL had also 
recently started delivering a two-day customer experience training course for drivers in-
house and was currently training all 20,000 drivers. The training included the social model 

3



Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

of disability, customer service skills, empathy training and overt and covert observation 
over 12 months. The training also included a section about letting passengers sit down 
before putting the bus back in motion, especially at hospitals. These measures were paid 
for by a Greater London Authority (GLA) grant.

In response to questions raised from the floor, George Marcar said that there was a phone 
number, postal address and email on any bus to which passengers could complain about, 
or praise, a bus driver. All complaints would be investigated including with the help of 
CCTV. If drivers did not obey traffic laws or endangered passengers in any way, they 
would be disciplined and could lose their job. George said he would provide some 
statistics about serious incidents. 

The chair said that there was a need for better feedback mechanism to complaints and 
that most bus drivers were doing a good job in sometimes difficult situations. 

Steve Kearns from TfL told the meeting that there had been more than 490 responses to 
the bus 42 consultation, 389 of which were in favour of extending the route to the 
Sainsbury’s in Dog Kennel Hill. TfL were looking to run double-decker buses on the route, 
which would cost an extra £700,000 a year. In order to accommodate this, the route would 
no longer be running down Sunray Avenue, but instead run on Red Post Hill. At the new 
terminus more land was required from Sainsbury’s, which would have to be negotiated. 
Steve went on to say that Tower Bridge would be closing from 1 October, so that bus 42 
would be running short, and would not be running across the river. Overcrowding would be 
addressed by running double-decker buses. 

In terms of the 484 bus, there was a problem with the regularity of the service and with 
overcrowding, which was mostly due to the works around the Lewisham Gateway which 
would soon be completed. The inaccuracies on the countdown for route 484 at 
Camberwell Green was due to buses being at the garage which was very close. The GPS 
was not able to pick up the difference between a bus being parked at the garage or 
moving towards the bus stop. The next generation of GPS would take care of that glitch. 

On a general level, Steve said, the funds received by TfL had consistently gone up over 
the last 20 years, however these subsidies would soon be taken away by the government. 
In terms of major public transport infrastructure projects, no funding had been secured 
beyond Crossrail 2, so the Bakerloo line extension was uncertain to go ahead soon. The 
likely route would be running down the Old Kent Road, as there would have to be financed 
partially by contributions from all the new developments.

In answer to questions from the floor, Steve said that TfL were trying to phase the buses 
running from Camberwell to Elephant and Castle more efficiently, and to review the traffic 
layout on Walworth Road. 

The meeting also heard that the 484 bus should also loop into Sainsbury’s car park on 
Dog Kennel Hill, and that plans for the 42 bus parking at Sainsbury’s had been worked up 
a few years ago. The juncture with Dog Kennel Hill was already difficult to navigate for 
buses, but that this road was Southwark’s, rather than TfL’s responsibility. Concerns were 
raised about the effect of the new 42 routing on economic well-being of Camberwell town 
centre. 

Young people from the Albrighton Centre told the meeting about the activities for young 
people at the centre and the off-site activities that the young people were part of, like 
sporting and educational trips.  

4



Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

At this point the meeting took a ten-minute break. 

9. SE5 FORUM - VISION FOR CAMBERWELL 

Barbara Pattinson, the chair of the SE5 Forum, explained that it was a grassroots 
community organisation, which had been founded to improve Camberwell, for example 
with a vision document. This document had been collated with the community and with 
support from local decision-makers and was looking at Camberwell 15 years into the 
future. She thanked local councilors for supporting the initiative, and said that the updated 
draft would be consulted on with every household in the area. 

Craig Stansfield from the group explained that there would be workshops around the “A 
New Vision for Camberwell” document, which was a summary description (or snapshot) of 
a desirable better future and a precursor to a strategy or a plan. It covered issues such as: 
expected increases in population, amenities, transport, businesses and leisure industries, 
building and urban design, conservation, arts, medical institutions, employment and 
affordable housing. 

The meeting split into workshops at 9.10pm. 

The workshops looked at: 
 what people liked about this vision,
 what could be changed
 what else needs to be included.

10. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATE 

Inspector Alex Ogilvie from the Metropolitan Police told the meeting that he was the new 
inspector for the southwest cluster. Sergeant Azu from South Camberwell ward informed 
the meeting about the regular panel meetings and encouraged all to attend. The team’s 
focus had been anti-social behavior, opportunistic burglaries and drug offenses. Burglaries 
and thefts from motor vehicles had fallen as a consequence of policing and better 
preventative methods. Anti-social behavior was being addressed by a team patrolling the 
area. The team had also focused on pirate radio stations and was working with the council 
to shut these down. 

PC Mark McKay from Camberwell Green ward said that alcohol and anti-social behaviour 
were the major issues. The police now had an anti-social behaviour escalation protocol 
which was being enforced along with verbal warnings, which would be kept on record. 
There had also been several arrests for drug dealing and supplying. 

11. CONNECT, SOUTHWARK 

Sally Vickers informed the meeting that the organisation was based in SE1, but welcomed 
service users from Camberwell, Southwark and the whole of London, including self-
referrals. She went on to explain what aphasia was and that about 360,000 people were 
suffering from it in the UK. The meeting also heard from Jane who gave a personal 
account of living with aphasia after a stroke. For more information see: 
http://www.ukconnect.org/ 

5

http://www.ukconnect.org/


Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

The chair thanked both for attending and for enlightening the meeting about the condition. 

12. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The chair made the following community announcements:

 Camberwell Green was going to reopen on the following weekend and there would 
be events including live music starting at 12noon. 

 On Saturday 20 August, the Camberwell Fair would be held in Burgess Park from 
10am to 8pm. 

 There would be summer youth activities at the Brandon Youth Centre on 
throughout July and August, and at the Burgess Park Adventure Playground. 
Details on the council’s website:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200246/activities_and_things_to_do/4004/summ
er_fun_2016.

13. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

There were none. 

14. CLEANER GREENER SAFER 2016-17: CAPITAL FUNDING ALLOCATION 

NOTE: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report. 

RESOLVED:

That the following amounts of 2016-17 Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) capital programme 
in the Camberwell Community Council area be allocated: 
 
South Camberwell ward

Champion Hill Estate picnic area £15,000
Denmark Hill Estate: solution for speeding £4,000
Cycle Parking: Denmark Hill Estate, Hillcrest, Bellenden Road £11,420

15. CLEANER GREENER SAFER: FUNDING REALLOCATION 

NOTE: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report. 

RESOLVED: 

That the following amounts be re-allocated from Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) capital 

6



Camberwell Community Council - Monday 11 July 2016

programme underspend: 
 
South Camberwell ward
South Camberwell environmental improvement fund  £5,520
Cycle parking: Denmark Hill Estate, Hillcrest/Bellenden Road £3,580

Brunswick Park ward
Glebe Estate playground (south)   £27,620

 
Camberwell Green ward
Cambwell Green environmental improvement fund £4,100

16. BRUNSWICK PARK PLAY AREA, SECTION 106 REPORT 

Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager, outlined the information contained in the 
report and reminded the meeting that the report asked for comments only about releasing 
the funding, rather than the design of the plans. 

Councillors considered the information contained in the report. 

RESOLVED:

That the official feedback from the community council to the planning committee is that 
they are happy for the funds to be released, but that the right design was important.  

17. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY 

RESOLVED: 

That this item be deferred to the 21 September meeting, as the next ordinary council 
assembly meeting would not take place until 30 November 2016.  

Meeting ended at 9.45 pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

7



Item No.
10.

Classification:
Open

Date:
21 September 2016

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community
Council

Report title: Deputation Request – Request for parking 
restrictions on St Francis Road

Ward(s) or groups affected: Brunswick Park

From: Proper Constitutional Officer

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Camberwell Community Council consider a deputation request from a 
group of residents regarding parking problems in St Francis Road and their 
proposal for parking restrictions.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2. A deputation request has been submitted by representatives of those mentioned 
above. A deputation can be submitted by a person of any age who lives, works 
or studies in Southwark. Deputations must relate to matters which the council 
has powers or duties or which affects Southwark.

3. The deputation refers to parking problems for residents of St Francis Road.

The deputation states:

“Parking stress in St Francis Road has continued to worsen over the last few 
years as a result of commuters parking their cars all day for the train station and 
the imposition of double yellow lines on the road.  As a result residents cannot 
easily find parking during working hours. Southwark Council prefers to issue 
parking restrictions on a zoned basis. Due to extenuating circumstances, namely 
our proximity to the station and the increasing complaints from residents on the 
road, we would like restrictions brought in on our road alone.”

4. At the meeting, the spokesperson for the deputation will be invited to speak up to 
five minutes on the subject matter. The community council will debate the 
deputation and at the conclusion of the deputation the chair will seek the consent 
of councillors to debate the subject. Councillors may move motions and 
amendments without prior notice if the subject does not relate to a report on the 
agenda. The meeting can decide to note the deputation or provide support if 
requested to do so. The community council shall not take any formal decision(s) 
on the subject raised unless a report is on the agenda.

5. Any relevant resource or community impact issues will be contained in the 
comments of the strategic director.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

6. The deputation shall consist of no more than six persons, including the
spokesperson.

8
Agenda Item 10



7. Only one member of the deputation shall be allowed to address the meeting, her 
or his speech being limited to five minutes.

8. Councillors may ask questions of the deputation, which shall be answered by 
their spokesperson or any member of the deputation nominated by her or him for 
up to five minutes at the conclusion of the spokesperson’s address.

9. If more than one deputation is to be heard in respect of one subject, there shall 
be no debate until each deputation has been presented. The monitoring officer 
shall, in writing, formally communicate the decision of the meeting to the person 
who submitted the request for the deputation to be received.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 

10.  To follow.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Written correspondence received  
from local residents 

160 Tooley Street,
London SE1P 5LX

Tim Murtagh 
020 7525 7187

APPENDICES

No. Title
None

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Chidi Agada, Principal Constitutional Officer
Report Author Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer
Version Final
Dated 12 July 2016
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy No No
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

No No

Strategic Director of 
Environment and Leisure

Yes To follow

Date final report sent to the Constitutional Team 13 September 
2016

9



Item No.
12.

Classification:
Open 

Date:
21 September 2016

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community Council

Report title: Community Council Highways Capital Investment for 
2015-16 and 2016-17

Ward(s) or groups affected All in the community council area

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION

1. To agree the funding for schemes proposed by ward members for Camberwell 
Community Council as set out in Appendix 1; or to agree alternative schemes subject 
to officer investigation and feasibility.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2. The declining quality of public highway combined with extreme weather events has led 
to further deterioration in recent years – with some non principal, unclassified roads 
being particularly affected. Given the nature of these roads and the lower level of 
traffic flows it is unlikely that such locations will feature in any major resurfacing 
programme. Without the necessary capital allocation to attend to such locations, 
complaints of poor road surfaces can only be dealt with through the council’s reactive 
maintenance programme.

3. The council’s non-principal road investment programme prioritises works on non-
principal roads on a borough-wide basis and this investment forms the largest part of 
the annual investment programme.

4. Since 2011-12, each community council has received devolved funding to implement 
local priorities that would not be a corporate priority for funding.

5. The financial provision for each community council is pro-rata by ward, as published in 
Highways Capital Investment Programme 2014-15 dated 12 December 2013 
(Appendix 4) and can also be found at:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%
22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22

6. Camberwell Community Council has been allocated £228,570 for highway 
improvement works (carriageway and footways) of its choice. This is a combined 
allocation for financial years 2015-16 and 2016-17 and it can be spent on any non-
principal road in the area. This is in addition to £36,516 of underspend from previous 
years giving a total available of £265,086. It is hoped that enough works will be 
proposed and implemented to fully spend the allocation to bring yearly allocations and 
works up-to-date. This report contains proposals from two wards (Brunswick Park and 
South Camberwell). No proposals were received from Camberwell Green Ward 
members. Officers have proposed a scheme in Camberwell Green ward for 
consideration. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. The overall combined two year budget available to Camberwell Community Council 
including underspend from the previous year is £265,086. The total estimate for 
proposals received so far comes to £244,692 excluding implementation fees as 

10
Agenda Item 12

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s43081/Report.pdf#search=%22highways%20capital%20investment%20programme%202014%22


detailed in Appendix 1. Based on the proposals received so far there is a projected 
underspent of £6,197. 

8. The commencement and completion of the schemes within the current financial year 
will depend upon the decision by the community council, subject to any adverse 
weather conditions later in the winter months.

Community council selections

9. This money can be spent on any asset renewal or replacement project selected by the 
community council with the caveats that it cannot be spent on traffic safety or parking 
schemes, non-functional or decorative installations and / or non-essential works. In 
addition to the resurfacing selections provided it, the money (or part thereof) could be 
spent on minor patching and pothole repairs should a community council wish to do 
so.

Delivery

10. Once the community council has made its selections by the method of its choice 
they will be designed and delivered as soon as possible in 2016-17. Any under 
spends or projected overspends will be reported back to community council for 
resolution or reallocation.

Community impact statement

11. There are no specific community impact issues arising from the recommendations.

Financial implications

12. The overall programme for the works covered in this report are based on initial 
estimates and may fluctuate due to varying circumstances such as sub strata 
conditions or other adjacent works which may require the work items and estimates 
to be adjusted. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Highways Capital
Investment Programme
Decision 12 December 2013

160 Tooley Street
PO Box 64529
Southwark Council
London SE1P
5LX 

Himanshu Jansari
0207525 3291 or 
Bentley Amankwah
02075252180 or
Matthew Hill 
020 7525 3541

APPENDICES

No. Title

Appendix 1 Ward members proposals for current financial year

Appendix 2 Extract from the Highways Capital Investment Programme –  
Yearly Community Council Investment Allocations (Appendix 4)

2015-16 & 2016-17 Combined Community Council Investment 
Allocations

11



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Matthew Hill, Head of Highways
Report Author Himanshu Jansari Project Engineer 
Version Final
Dated 8 September 2016
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included
Strategic Director  of  Finance and 
Governance 

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to the Constitutional Team 8 September 2016

12



Ward Councillor proposals for current financial year 

Devolved Community Council Funded Schemes  Funding 
Under spend from previous year £36,515 

Community Council : Camberwell Allocation for FY 2015/16 & 2016/17           £228,570 
Implementation Fees (10%)                        -£26,509 
Proposed Schemes total till date                 -£244,692 

Projected Underspent          -£6,197 

Ward Member’s Proposals 
Candidate Road Ward Carriageway/Footway Estimated Cost Comments  
Dagmar Road Brunswick Park Footway £22,000 Yet to be approved 
Maude Road Brunswick Park  Footway £15,000 Yet to be approved 
Havil Street Brunswick Park  Footway £35,000 Yet to be approved 
Vicarage Grove Brunswick Park  Footway £22,000 Yet to be approved 
Sansom Street Brunswick Park  Footway £20,000 Yet to be approved 
Coleman Road Brunswick Park  Footway £36,000 Yet to be approved 
Ivanhoe Road South Camberwell  Carriageway £34,892 Yet to be approved 
Grove Hill Road  South Camberwell  Carriageway £32,000 Yet to be approved 
Dog Kennel Hill South Camberwell  Carriageway £ Principal Roads. DHB Cannot be allocated. 
Bantry Street Camberwell Green Carriageway £27,800 Proposed by Officer.

Overall Total £244,692 

APPENDIX 1
13



 

Extract (Appendix 4 of the Highways Capital Investment Programme 
– Yearly Community Council Investment Allocations)

Community Council Ward Allocation (£) Total (£) 

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe 

Grange £38,095

Livesey (part)  £19,050 

Riverside £38,095

Rotherhithe £38,095

South Bermondsey £38,095 

Surrey Docks £38,095 £209,525 

Borough, Bankside and 
Walworth 

Cathedrals £38,095

Chaucer £38,095

East Walworth £38,095 

Faraday £38,095

Newington £38,095 £190,475

Camberwell 

Brunswick Park £38,095 

Camberwell Green £38,095 

South Camberwell £38,095 £114,285 

Dulwich 

College £38,095

East Camberwell £38,095 

Village £38,095 £114,285

Peckham and 

Livesey (part £19,050 

Nunhead £38,095

Peckham £38,095

Peckham Rye £38,095 

The Lane £38,095 £171,430 

TOTAL £800,000

APPENDIX 2
14



 

 

 

2015-16 and 2016-17 Combined Community Council 
Investment Allocations 
 

Community Council Ward 
Allocation 

(£k’s) 
Total (£k’s) 

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe 

Grange £76,190   

Livesey (part)  £38,100   

Riverside £76,190   

Rotherhithe £76,190   

South Bermondsey £76,190   

Surrey Docks £76,190 £419,050 

Borough, Bankside and 
Walworth 

Cathedrals £76,190   

Chaucer £76,190   

East Walworth £76,190   

Faraday £76,190   

Newington £76,190 £380,950 

Camberwell 

Brunswick Park £76,190   

Camberwell Green £76,190   

South Camberwell £76,190 £228,570 

Dulwich 

College £76,190   

East Camberwell £76,190   

Village £76,190 £228,570 

Peckham and 

Livesey (part £38,100   

Nunhead £76,190   

Peckham £76,190   

Peckham Rye £76,190   

The Lane £76,190 £342,860 

TOTAL £1,600,000 

 

 

15



Item No. 
13.

Classification:
Open

Date:
21 September 2016

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community 
Council

Report title: Local traffic and parking amendments 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green and South 
Camberwell

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. It is recommended that the following local traffic and parking amendments, 
detailed in the appendices to this report, are approved for implementation 
subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory consultation and procedures:

1.1 Kerfield Place – to install new single yellow lines outside Nos. 8 and 9 and 
adjacent to the existing private parking areas to maintain access to off 
street parking and to improve intervisibility with vehicles on Kerfield Place.

1.2 Pelham Close – to install double yellow lines and a 10 metre parking bay to 
maintain access and to prevent obstructive and dangerous parking for all 
road users.

1.3 Tower Mill Road – to install double yellow on junctions and adjacent to 
footway build outs to maintain access and to prevent obstructive and 
dangerous parking and to improve intervisibility at junctions for all road 
users.

1.4 All Camberwell community council wards - install new double yellow lines 
on unrestricted junctions, and upgrade junctions with existing single yellow 
lines to double yellow lines, to improve intervisibility and road safety for all 
road users.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. Paragraph 20 of Part 3H of the Southwark constitution sets out that the 
community council will take decisions on the following local non-strategic matters:

 the introduction of single traffic signs
 the introduction of short lengths of waiting and loading restrictions
 the introduction of road markings
 the setting of consultation boundaries for consultation on traffic schemes
 the introduction of destination disabled parking bays
 statutory objections to origin disabled parking bays
 determination of objections to traffic management orders that do not relate 

to strategic or borough-wide issues

3. This report gives recommendations for local traffic and parking amendments, 
involving traffic signs, waiting restrictions and road markings. 

16
Agenda Item 13



4. The origins and reasons for the recommendations are discussed within the key 
issues section of this report. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

5. A local parking amendment (LPA) is small project to change an existing parking 
restriction or to introduce a new one.

6. These tend to be carried out in locations where we have had a request to look at 
dangerous or obstructive parking and where small lengths of restrictions could 
provide a solution.

7. Local parking amendments are batched together and carried through a quarterly 
programme. During the second quarter of 2016-17, the council is proposing four 
LPA’s as summarised in figure 1.

8. The rationale for each proposal is discussed in the associated Appendix. A 
detailed design of the proposal is included.

Location Proposal Appendix
Kerfield Place to install new single yellow lines outside 

Nos. 8 and 9 and adjacent to the existing 
private parking areas to maintain access 
to off street parking and to improve 
intervisibility with vehicles on Kerfield 
Place

1

Pelham Close to install double yellow lines and a 10 
metre parking bay to maintain access 
and to prevent obstructive and 
dangerous parking for all road users

2

Tower Mill Road to install double yellow on junctions and 
adjacent to footway build outs to 
maintain access and  to prevent 
obstructive and dangerous parking and 
to improve intervisibility at junctions for 
all road users

3

All Camberwell community 
council wards

To install new double yellow lines on 
unrestricted junctions, and upgrade 
junctions with existing single yellow lines 
to double yellow lines, to improve inter-
visibility and road safety for all road 
users

4

Figure 1
Policy implications

9. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the 
polices of the Transport Plan 2011,

 Policy 1.1 – pursue overall traffic reduction
 Policy 4.2 – create places that people can enjoy.
 Policy 8.1 – seek to reduce overall levels of private motor vehicle traffic on 

our streets

17



Community impact statement

10. The policies within the transport plan are upheld within this report have been 
subject to an equality impact assessment

11. The recommendations are area based and therefore will have greatest affect 
upon those people living working or traveling in the vicinity of the areas where 
the proposals are made.

12. The introduction of yellow lines at junctions gives benefit to all road users 
through the improvement of inter-visibility and therefore road safety.

13. There is a risk that new restrictions may cause parking to be displaced and, 
indirectly, have an adverse impact upon road users and neighbouring properties 
at that location. However this cannot be entirely preempted until the 
recommendation have been implemented and observed.

14. With the exception of those benefits and risks identified above, the 
recommendations are not considered to have a disproportionate effect on any 
other community or group.

15. The recommendations support the council’s equalities and human rights policies 
and promote social inclusion by:

 Providing improved access for key services such as emergency and 
refuse vehicles.

 Improving road safety, in particular for vulnerable road users, on the 
public highway.

Resource implications 

16. All costs arising from implementing the recommendations will be fully contained 
within the existing public realm budgets

Legal implications

17. Traffic management orders would be made under powers contained within the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act (RTRA) 1984. 

18. Should the recommendations be approved the council will give notice of its 
intention to make a traffic order in accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic 
Order (Procedure) (England and Wales Regulations 1996.  

19. These regulations also require the council to consider any representations 
received as a result of publishing the draft order for a period of 21 days following 
publication of the draft order.

20. Should any objections be received they must be properly considered in light of 
administrative law principles, Human Rights law and relevant statutory powers.

21. By virtue of section 122, the council must exercise its powers under the RTRA 
1984 so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and provision of suitable and 

18



adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.

22. These powers must be exercised so far as practicable having regard to the 
following matters

a) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises
b) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation 
     and restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve  
     amenity
c) The national air quality strategy
d) Facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the safety and 
    convenience of their passengers 
e) Any other matters appearing to the council to be relevant.
 

Consultation

23. For the recommendations in paragraph 1, the implementation of changes to 
parking requires the making of a traffic order. The procedures for making a traffic 
order are defined by national Regulations which include statutory consultation 
and the consideration of any arising objections.

24. Should the recommendations be approved the council must follow the 
procedures contained with Part II and III of the Regulation which are 
supplemented by the council’s own processes. This process is summarised as:

a) publication of a proposal notice in a local newspaper (Southwark News) 
b) publication of a proposal notice in the London Gazette
c) display of notices in roads affected by the orders
d) consultation with statutory authorities 
e) making available for public inspection any associated documents (eg. 

plans, draft orders, statement of reasons) via the council's website or by 
appointment at 160 Tooley Street, SE1

f) a 21 day consultation period during which time any person may comment 
upon or object to the proposed order

25. Following publication of the proposal notice, any person wanting to object must 
make their objection in writing, state the grounds on which it is made and send to 
the address specified on the notice.

26. Should an objection be made that officers are unable to resolve so that it is 
withdrawn, it will be reported to the community council for determination. The 
community council will then consider whether to modify the proposal, accede to 
or reject the objection. The council will subsequently notify all objectors of the 
final decision.

Programme Timeline

27. If theses item are approved by the community council they will be progressed in 
line with the below, approximate timeline:

 Traffic orders (statutory consultation) – October  to November 2016
 Implementation – December 2016/January 2017

19



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Transport Plan 2011 Southwark Council

Environment and Leisure
Network development
Highways
160 Tooley Street
London
SE1 2QH
Online:
http://www.southwark.gov.
uk/info/200107/transport_p
olicy/1947/southwark_trans
port_plan_2011 

Leah Coburn
020 7525 4744

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Kerfield Place – install single yellow line 
Appendix 2 Pelham Close – install double yellow lines and parking bay
Appendix 3 Tower Mill Road – install double yellow lines
Appendix 4 All Camberwell community councils wards – install double yellow 

lines at junctions

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Matthew Hill, Head of Highways
Report Author Paul Gellard, Senior Engineer

Version Final
Dated 8 September 2016

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included

Director of Law and Democracy                No No
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 September 2016

20

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011


Local parking amendment

Reference  16/17_Q2_012  Location overview 

Location  Kerfield Place 

Proposal  To install new single yellow lines 
outside Nos. 8 and 9 and adjacent to 
the existing private parking areas to 
maintain access to off street parking 
and to improve inter‐visibility with 
vehicles on Kerfield Place 

Community council 
meeting 

Camberwell 

Community council date  21 September 2016 

Ward(s) affected  Brunswick Park 

Local parking amendment 

A local parking amendment (LPA) is small project to change an existing parking restriction or to introduce a new one. 

These tend to be carried out in locations where we have had a request to look at dangerous or obstructive parking 
and where small lengths of restrictions could provide a solution. 

Request 

In June 2016 the council received a request from a resident of Kerfield Place who raised concerns about obstructive 
parking adjacent to the private parking places during the day. 

Location 

Kerfield Place is within the South Camberwell (L) controlled parking zone which operates Monday to Friday 8.30 am 
– 6.30 pm.
There are two private parking places adjacent to the public highway. 

Investigation and conclusions 

This part of Kerfield Place was thought to be private and not part of the South Camberwell (L) CPZ.  

Further investigation has confirmed that two sections of the carriageway outside Nos.7, 10 and 11 are private and 
remainder is public highway. 

At present there are no restrictions adjacent to the private parking spaces and this results is vehicles parking and 
obstructing the access to the private spaces. 

Recommendation 

Based on our investigation and conclusions, the council are recommending, as shown is drawing below, That a single 
yellow line is introduced adjacent to the private parking spaces to prevent obstructive parking. 
A detailed design drawing of the proposal is provided within this document.  

Next steps 

Should the community council approve this local parking amendment, it is expected that statutory consultation will 
commence in November 2016. 

Following the statutory consultation period, the council will make arrangements to install the restrictions (road 
marking and signage at the location).  

Should objections be received during the statutory consultation period, these will be presented at the next 
community council meeting for determination.  

APPENDIX 1
21



22



Local parking amendment

Reference  16/17_Q2_013  Location overview 

Location  Pelham Close 

Proposal  To install double yellow lines and a 
10 metre  parking  bay  to maintain 
access  and  to  prevent  obstructive 
and dangerous parking for all road 
users.  

Community council 
meeting 

Camberwell 

Community council 
date 

21 September 2016 

Ward(s) affected  South Camberwell 

Local parking amendment 

A local parking amendment (LPA) is small project to change an existing parking restriction or to introduce a new one. 

These tend to be carried out in locations where we have had a request to look at dangerous or obstructive parking 
and where small lengths of restrictions could provide a solution. 

Request 

On 2 July 2016 the council received a request from Cllr King on behalf of one of her constituent’s raising concerns 
about the parking on Pelham Close. 

Location 

Pelham Close is mainly unrestricted except for small section of double yellow line at the junction with Grove Park. 
The area is residential and is within walking distance of South Camberwell (L) controlled parking zone (CPZ), making 
the street an attractive parking location for non‐residents. 

Investigation and conclusions 

An officer carried out a site visit, 13 July 2016, to ascertain the current parking 
arrangements and noted that vehicles were parked in a way that would obstruct 
large delivery, refuse and emergency vehicles.  

A major highway safety concern is the turning circle at the end of the close. There 
were three vehicles parked there at the time of the visit and they were obstructing 
access to  off street parking for residents. 

At the time of the site visit it was noted that there was blue badge disabled bay in 
faded condition. A revoke notice was placed on street furniture adjacent to the bay. 
As no correspondence was received confirming that the bay was still in use, 
arrangement were made to remove the road markings. 

The carriageway width varies between 3.7 metres to 5.8 metres. Most of the 
carriageway cannot support parking apart from a section where there is enough 
space to install a 10 metre parking bay. This is where the existing disabled bay has 
been removed. The parking bay will be unrestricted.  

It is noted that all properties except for no.1 have either a private garage or access to off‐street parking. 

Recommendation 

Based on our investigation and conclusions the council are recommending that double yellow lines are introduced 
along the entire length on Pelham Close to prevent parking and to maintain access for all road users. 

APPENDIX 2
23



A small section of unrestricted parking will remain opposite the garages. 
 
A detailed design drawing of the proposal is provided within this document.  

Next steps 

Should the community council approve this local parking amendment, it is expected that statutory consultation will 
commence in November 2016. 
 
Following the statutory consultation period, the council will make arrangements to install the restrictions (road 
marking and signage at the location).  
 
Should objections be received during the statutory consultation period, these will be presented at the next 
community council meeting for determination.  
 

 

24



25



Local parking amendment

Reference  16/17_Q2_014  Location overview 

Location  Tower Mill Road/Donato Drive 

Proposal  To install double yellow on junctions and 
adjacent  to  footway  build  outs  to 
maintain access, prevent obstructive and 
dangerous  parking,  and  improve  inter 
visibility at junctions for all road users 

Community council 
meeting 

Camberwell 

Community council 
date 

21 September 2016 

Ward(s) affected  Brunswick Park 

Note: This recommendation is also being reported to Peckham and Nunhead community council as the proposal also 

falls within Peckham ward. 

Local parking amendment 

A local parking amendment (LPA) is small project to change an existing parking restriction or to introduce a new one. 

These tend to be carried out in locations where we have had a request to look at dangerous or obstructive parking 
and where small lengths of restrictions could provide a solution. 

Request 

The council received a number of requests from residents for double yellow lines to prevent obstructive and 
dangerous parking on Tower Mill Road during weekdays and weekends. 

Location 

Tower Mill Road is mainly unrestricted except for small sections on double yellow lines and disabled parking bays.  

The street has a high residential density. This along with being close to the boundary of an existing parking zone, as 
well as Burgess Park, means that there is likely to be high demand for on‐street parking. 

Investigation and conclusions 

Officers have carried out a number of site visits and on each occasion it was 
noted that vehicles were parked close to the road junctions.  

A major concern that was observed is the obstructive parking adjacent to the 
junction with Pearse Street.  During the visit the officer noted that large 
delivery vans were having difficulty manoeuvring past the parked vehicles. The 
way vehicles were parked would effectively block the road for emergency and 
refuse sized vehicles. 
During 2016 the council has received four requests from residents for a parking 
zone; this indicates that parking stress is increasing in the area. There are 
currently no plans to carry out a consultation on the possible introduction of a 
parking zone. However there is clearly a safety concern with dangerous and 
inconsiderate parking that requires safety measures. 

As the entire highway is unrestricted and vehicles are parking wherever 
possible including, this reduces the highway width and makes access difficult 
for large vehicles. 

Recommendation 

Based on our investigation and conclusions the council are recommending the introduction of double yellow lines on 
all road junctions on Tower Mill Road and in sections of the street where parking is deemed unsafe. This is to 
maintain access and prevent obstructive parking at any time. 

APPENDIX 3
26



A detailed design drawing of the proposal is provided within this document. 

Next steps 

Should the community council approve this local parking amendment, it is expected that statutory consultation will 
commence in November 2016. 

Following the statutory consultation period, the council will make arrangements to install the restrictions (road 
marking and signage at the location).  

Should objections be received during the statutory consultation period, these will be presented at the next 
community council meeting for determination.  

27



28



Appendix 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The council intends to implement double yellow lines 
on all junctions in the borough to improve junction 
visibility and facilitate access for all road users. 

This document provides detail on proposals to 
introduce double yellow lines on all junctions in the 
Camberwell community council wards. 

We estimate there are 3000 road junctions in Southwark, 
approximately 2000 of which are currently protected with 
yellow lines. The majority of these protected junctions are 
located with our existing Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs). 
This leaves in the region of 1000 junctions without yellow 
line restrictions where inconsiderate or unsafe parking 
cannot be enforced against by civil enforcement officers 

Historically, the council has investigated and implemented double yellow lines on a case-by-case basis 
as and when we receive a request from a resident, waste collection or the emergency services raising 
concerns about vehicle and pedestrian safety or access. 

This is a costly exercise as our investigations include site assessments, preparation of drawings, public 
consultation, council decision making, project management, road safety audits, traffic order statutory 
consultation and, finally, the actual installation of road markings. 

The process for the review of junctions is more efficient when a large number of junctions are 
investigated at the same time, for example by reducing the number of consultations, road safety audits 
and traffic orders required. This would also result in capacity to review more junctions in a shorter time 
frame.  

There is also a strong argument that we should be taking a pro-active approach to implementing safety 
improvements. With the increase in demand for on street parking in Southwark we are finding an 
increase in inconsiderate parking at junctions and at other locations. 

It is not good practice and is certainly poor value for money to implement junction protection as and 
when they arise. We are therefore recommending implementing junction protection in all streets in 
Southwark on a ward by ward basis, subject to the necessary statutory consultation. 

Borough‐wide junction protection 
Camberwell community council area 

www.southwark.gov.uk/parking  

83% of road junctions in
Camberwell community council area 
already have double yellow line 
protection. 

We are proposing to install double 

yellow lines on the 9% of road
junctions that don’t have any 
protection and to upgrade junctions 
where single yellow lines currently 
exist 

APPENDIX 4
29



 

September 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brunswick Park Ward 

Where are double yellow lines proposed? 
 
Double yellow lines are being proposed at 5 junctions as detailed in the following table, and as illustrated 
in figure 1. 
 
Junctions on Tower Mill Road are covered as part of a separate local parking amendment. 
 
Location  Location 
DE Crespigny Park & Harford Close Kerfield Place & Kerfield Crescent 

Peckham Grove road closure  Allendale Close & Allendale Close 

Peckham Grove & Newent Close 

* The above locations have been derived from our mapping system, these location are shown on the overview map. 

 

 

Is it also worth adding in the junctions which are being upgraded from single to doubles?

www.southwark.gov.uk/parking  

Borough‐wide junction protection 
Camberwell community council area 
 

30



 

Brunswick Park ward – figure 1 

 

Key Description 
 Existing East Camberwell l (EC) and South Camberwell (L) parking zones 
 Proposed double yellow lines (junction protection doesn’t exist) 
 Proposed double yellow lines (upgrade existing single yellow line to double yellow line) 
 Existing junction protection (double yellow lines) 

 

 

 

31



 

Camberwell Green Ward 

Where are double yellow lines proposed? 
 
Double yellow lines are being proposed at 15 junctions as detailed in the following table, and as 
illustrated in figure 2 
 
Location  Location 
Coldharbour Lane & Lowth Road  Redcar Street & Wyndham Road 

Coldharbour Lane & Crawford Road  Comber Grove & Wyndham Road  

Camberwell Station Road & Knatchbull Road  Farmers Road & Madrigal Lane 

Baldwin Crescent & County Grove Farmers Road & School entrance 

Camberwell Green & DEynsford Road  Lowth Road & estate entrance 

Kimpton Road & DEynsford Road Lowth Road & estate entrance 

Edmund Street & Durfey Place  Lowth Road & estate entrance 

Councillor Street & Redcar Street

* The above locations have been derived from our mapping system, these location are shown on the overview map. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



 

Camberwell Green ward – figure 2 

 

Key Description 
 Existing North Camberwell (NC) and Camberwell (K) parking zones 
 Proposed double yellow lines (upgrade existing single yellow line to double yellow line) 
 Existing junction protection (double yellow lines) 

 

 

 

33



 

South Camberwell Ward 

Where are double yellow lines proposed? 
 
Double yellow lines are being proposed at 30 junctions as detailed in the following table, and as 
illustrated in figure 3 
 
Location  Location 
Camberwell Grove & private road Oglander Road & Muschamp Road 

Champion Hill & Langford Green  Abbotsford Road  & private road 

Champion Hill & estate road  Abbotsford Road & Talbot Road 

Champion Hill & Langford Green  Abbotsford Road & Burrow Road 

Champion Hill & estate road  Abbotsford Road & Shaw Road 

Champion Hill & Langford Green  Burrow Road & Buxted Road 

Champion Hill & estate road  Abbotsford Road turning head 

Champion Hill & Anderton Close  Talbot Road turning head

Champion Hill & Spring Hill Close Burrow Road turning head

Grove Park & Grove Park  Buxted Road turning head

Chadwick Road & Linwood Close  Copleston Road & Oxenford Street 
Grove Hill Road & Ivanhoe Road  Oxenford Street & Everthorpe Road 
Malfort Road & Ivanhoe Road  Copleston Road & Soames Street 
Albrighton Road & Bromar Road  Copleston Road & Avondale Rise 
Besant Place & Hayes Grove  Oglander Road & Marsden Road 
 

* The above locations have been derived from our mapping system, these location are shown on the overview map 

 

 

34



 

South Camberwell ward – figure 3 

 

Key Description 
 Existing South Camberwell (L) parking zone 
 Proposed double yellow lines (junction protection doesn’t exist) 
 Proposed double yellow lines (upgrade existing single yellow line to double yellow line) 
 Existing junction protection (double yellow lines) 

 

35



 

Why are double yellow lines being proposed? 

 The current proposals aim to remove obstructive and dangerous parking from all junctions in the 
area.  The Highway Code makes it clear that motorists must not park within 10 metres of a 
junction, unless in a designated parking bay.  However the council has no power to enforce this 
without the introduction of a traffic order and subsequent implementation of waiting restrictions 
(yellow lines).   

 
 By introducing double yellow lines at junctions we ensure that we meet the needs of all road 

users whilst ensuring that motorists clearly understand where and when it is safe to park. In our 
experience motorists have a clearer understanding of the meaning of a double yellow line 
compared to their understanding of the Highway Code and therefore will abide by them without 
the need for enforcement.  
 

 Where there are single yellow lines on a junction this can send out mixed messages that it is 
acceptable to park in these locations at certain times which is why we are proposing upgrading 
these to double yellow lines as part of this project.  

 
 Ensuring adequate visibility between road users is important for safety. Visibility should generally 

be sufficient to allow road users to see potential conflicts or dangers in advance of the distance in 
which they will be able to brake and come to a stop. 

 
 Vehicles that are parked at a junction have the effect of substantially reducing visibility between 

road users and reducing stopping sight distance (SSD). This is the viewable distance required for 
a driver to see so that they can make a complete stop before colliding with something in the 
street, e.g. pedestrian, cyclist or a stopped vehicle. Double yellow lines ensure this inter-visibility 
is provided at junctions and prevents people parking over dropped kerbs. 
 

 It is noted that almost two thirds of cyclists killed or seriously injured in 2015 were involved  in 
collisions at, or near, a road junction. 

 
 Children and those in wheelchairs (whose eye level is below the height of a parked car) are 

disproportionally affected by vehicles parked too close to a junction.  The Guide Dogs for the 
Blind Association (Guide Dogs) strongly recommend that yellow lines are implemented at 
junctions as these areas are potentially more dangerous to vulnerable road users. 
 

How much yellow line will be installed on a junction? 

 
The yellow lines are installed using less-intrusive primrose coloured paint in the narrowest permitted 
50mm wide lines, for 7.5 meters on each arm of the junction.  At some junctions, the proposed double 
yellow lines may extend further, i.e. where there is a dropped kerb, or a particular issue with visibility. 
 
This reflects the Council's design standard on junction visibility ((DS114 Highway Visibility and DS 002 
Yellow line and blip road markings) and is sufficient to allow road users to see potential dangers in 
advance of the distance in which they will be able to brake and come to a stop. 
  
As well as our internal design procedure we also consider: 
  

 Existing laws (e.g. Highway Code rule 243 - parking is not allowed within 10m of a junction) 
 National research and guidance (e.g. Chapter 7.7 of the Manual for Streets) 
 Stakeholder guidance (e.g. London Fire Brigade's access guidance) 

 
Please note that there may be some circumstances where other proposals come forward for junctions 
within the study area. In any such situation the proposals here will be superseded if other proposals are 
implemented. 
 

36



 

 
What happens next? 
 
The process and the expected delivery dates to implement double yellow lines on all junctions within the 
ward are detailed below.  The below timetable will be lengthened/amended should objections to the 
statutory consultation process be received, since such objections will need to be determined by the 
Community Council at a future meeting. 
 
Process and expected delivery dates 

 
 Expected delivery dates 
Ward Junction 

assessments 
Community 
council 

Statutory 
consultation 

Implementation 

All wards August 2016 September 2016 Early 2017 Spring 2017 
 

 

Junction assessment

•Junction 
assessments and 
categorisation

Community council

•Ward drawing to 
Community Council 
for consideration

Statutory consultation

•Preparation of 
technical drawing

Implementation

•Installation of road 
markings

37



Item No. 
14.

Classification:
Open

Date:
21 September 2016

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community 
Council

Report title: Edmund Street and nearby streets – reconfiguration 
of existing parking arrangements and creation of  
new resident parking bays

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Camberwell and Brunswick 

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. It is recommended that the following non-strategic parking reconfiguration and 
creation of new permit holder only parking bays, detailed in the appendices to 
this report, are approved for implementation subject to the outcome of any 
necessary statutory consultation and procedures.

1.1 Edmund Street – reconfigure the existing parking bays between its junction 
with New Church Road and its junction with Durfey Place, and associated 
double yellow lines along its length.

1.2 Southampton Way - creation of eight new parking bays near its junction 
with New Church Road, on the southern side and associated double yellow 
lines.

1.3 Dobson Walk - creation of eight new parking bays and associated double 
yellow lines.

1.4 Notley Street – reconfiguration of existing parking bays and creation of five 
new parking bays and associated double yellow lines.

1.5 Sam King Walk - creation of twelve new parking bays and associated 
double yellow lines.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2 Part 3H of the Southwark Constitution delegates decision making for non-strategic 
traffic management matters to the community council.

3 Paragraph 20 of Part 3H of the Southwark Constitution sets out that the 
community council will take decisions on the following local non-strategic matters:
 the introduction of single traffic signs
 the introduction of short lengths of waiting and loading restrictions
 the introduction of road markings
 the setting of consultation boundaries for consultation on traffic schemes
 the introduction of destination disabled parking bays
 statutory objections to origin disabled parking bays.

38
Agenda Item 14



4 Paragraph 17 sets out that community councils are responsible for determination 
of objections to traffic management orders that do not relate to strategic or 
borough wide issues.

5 This report gives recommendations for local traffic and parking amendments, 
involving traffic signs, waiting restrictions and road markings. 

6 The origins and reasons for the recommendations are discussed within the key 
issues section of this report. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

7 The proposals made are related to the development of the site bounded by 
Edmund Street, Southampton Way and Notley Street which was granted 
planning permission (ref: 11-AP-4309) dated 22 March 2012. This permits the re-
development of the site for residential housing, construction of two new roads; 
namely Sam King Walk and Dobson Walk, and the extension of Notley Street to 
connect through to Edmund Street.  Public consultation was undertaken as part 
of the planning process.

Parking matters

8 The development is located within Camberwell C3 parking zone. 

9 The approved s106 agreement plan creates 31 new parking spaces. The 
developer is obligated to provide 10 as disabled badge holder spaces and one 
‘car club space’. The remaining 20 spaces will be designated as permit holder 
only.

10 The disabled parking spaces will only be marked out as such when required 
through the normal Council individual application process. Initially they will be 
marked out and made available as permit holders only.

Policy implications 

11 The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the 
polices of the Transport Plan 2011, particularly

Policy 1.1 – pursue overall traffic reduction
Policy 4.2 – create places that people can enjoy.
Policy 8.1 – seek to reduce overall levels of private motor vehicle traffic on our 
streets

Community impact statement

12 The policies within the Transport Plan are upheld within this report have been 
subject to an Equality Impact Assessment.

13 The recommendations are area based and therefore will have greatest affect upon 
those people living, working or traveling in the vicinity of the areas where the 
proposals are made.

14 The double yellow lines will benefit all road users through improved junction 
intervisibility and prevention of illegal parking resulting in enhanced road safety.  

39



15 As there are limited permit holder bays being provided, the s106 for the 
development has a parking methodology which details how parking permits are 
allocated to residents. The list of eligible house numbers has been agreed 
between Planning and the developer as part of discharging the developer’s 
planning obligations and is detailed at Appendix 4. 

16 There are a number of new residents who will not be eligible for parking permits 
but this information would have been made available to them at the time they 
either purchased or entered into leases for the new dwellings. 

17 Apart from the risk identified above, the recommendations are not considered to 
have a disproportionate effect on any other community or group.

18 The recommendations support the council’s equalities and human rights policies 
and promote social inclusion by: 

   Providing more disabled bays than previously obtaining in the zone.
   Improving road safety, in particular for vulnerable road users, on the public 

highway. 

Resource implications

19 All costs arising from implementing the recommendations will be fully met by the 
developer. 

Legal implications

20 Traffic management orders would be made under powers contained within the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act (RTRA) 1984. 

21 Should the recommendations be approved the council will give notice of its 
intention to make a traffic order in accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic 
Order (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.

22 These regulations also require the council to consider any representations 
received as a result of publishing the draft order for a period of 21 days following 
publication of the draft order. 

23 Should any objections be received they must be properly considered in the light 
of administrative law principles, human rights law and the relevant statutory 
powers. 

24 By virtue of section 122, the council must exercise its powers under the RTRA 
1984 so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. 

25 These powers must be exercised so far as practicable having regard to the 
following matters:

a)  the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises
b)  the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation 
and 

40



     restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity
c)  the national air quality strategy
d)  facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the safety and 
     convenience of their passengers 
e)  any other matters appearing to the council to be relevant.

Consultation

26 Where public or stakeholder consultation has already been completed, this is 
described within the key issues section of the report.

27 The implementation of changes to parking requires the making of a traffic order. 
The procedures for making a traffic order are defined by national Regulations 
which include statutory consultation and the consideration of any arising 
objections.

28 Should the recommendations be approved the council must follow the procedures 
contained within Part II and III of the Regulations which are supplemented by the 
council's own processes. This is process is summarised as: 

 publication of a proposal notice in a local newspaper (Southwark News) 
 publication of a proposal notice in the London Gazette
 display of notices in roads affected by the orders
 consultation with statutory authorities 
 making available for public inspection any associated documents (eg. 

plans, draft orders, statement of reasons) via the council's website or by 
appointment at 160 Tooley Street, SE1

 a 21 day consultation period during which time any person may comment 
upon or object to the proposed order

29 Following publication of the proposal notice, any person wanting to object must 
make their objection in writing, state the grounds on which it is made and send it 
to the address specified on the notice. 

30 Should an objection be made that officers are unable to resolve so that it is 
withdrawn, it will be reported to the community council for determination. The 
community council will then consider whether to modify the proposals, accede to 
or reject the objection.  The council will subsequently notify all objectors of the 
final decision. 

Programme timeline

31 If the items contained in this report are approved by the community council they 
will progressed in line with the below, approximate, timeframe:

 Traffic orders (statutory consultation) – September to October 2016
 Implementation –  October to November 2016

41



Background Documents

Background Papers Held At Contact
Transport Plan 2011 Southwark Council

Environment and Leisure
Public Realm projects
Parking design
160 Tooley Street
London
SE1 2QH
Online:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/20
0107/transport_policy/1947/southwa
rk_transport_plan_2011 

Robson Mupani 
020 7525 4741

APPENDICES

No. Title

Appendix 1 S106 agreement
Appendix 2 Existing parking restrictions
Appendix 3 Proposed parking restrictions
Appendix 4 Allocation methodology letter
Appendix 5 Parking plot schedule

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Matthew Hill, Head of Highways
Report Author Robson Mupani, Principal Engineer

Version Final
Dated 8 September 2016

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included

Director of Law and Democracy No No
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 21 September 2016

42

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011


APPENDIX 1
43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



63
, E

D
M

U
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, S

E
5 

7N
F

S
h

o
w

 m
o

re
 o

n
 t

h
e 

m
ap

E
X

C
D

_O
ut

si
de

O
fS

ou
th

w
ar

k_
m

as
k

E
X

C
D

_O
ut

si
de

O
fS

ou
th

w
ak

_m
as

k
A

do
pt

ed
 h

ig
hw

ay

A
do

pt
ed

 h
ig

hw
ay

 e
xt

en
t

A
do

pt
ed

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 m

ad
e

si
nc

e 
A

ug
 2

01
4

In
d.

 V
al

ue
 w

ith
 T

yp
e

A
dd

ed

E
xt

in
gu

is
hm

en
t

R
em

ov
ed

S
to

pp
in

g 
up

T
o 

be
 a

ss
ig

ne
d

T
fL

 h
ig

hw
ay

T
fL

 h
ig

hw
ay

s
W

ai
tin

g 
Lo

ad
in

g 
S

to
pp

in
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tn
s

In
d.

 V
al

ue
 w

ith
 R

oa
d_

m
ar

ki
ng

B
us

 s
to

p

D
ou

bl
e 

ke
rb

 s
tr

ip
e

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne

N
on

e 
(R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
)

S
in

gl
e 

ke
rb

 s
tr

ip
e

S
in

gl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne

Z
ig

 z
ag

APPENDIX 277



P
ar

ki
ng

 b
ay

s
In

d.
 V

al
ue

 w
ith

 T
yp

e

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

C
ar

 c
lu

b

C
oa

ch
 (

sh
or

t s
ta

y)

C
oa

ch
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
 o

r 
ca

sh
)

C
yc

le
 h

ire

D
is

ab
le

d

D
is

ab
le

d 
(s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y)

D
oc

to
r

E
le

ct
ric

 v
eh

ic
le

 r
ec

ha
rg

in
g

Lo
ad

in
g 

on
ly

Lo
ad

in
g 

on
ly

 (
go

od
s 

ve
hi

cl
es

)

M
ot

or
cy

cl
e

P
ai

d 
(m

et
er

)

P
ai

d 
(p

ho
ne

 o
r 

ca
sh

)

P
ai

d 
(p

ho
ne

 o
r 

pa
yp

oi
nt

)

P
ai

d 
(p

ho
ne

)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

on
ly

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
 o

r
ca

sh
)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
 o

r
pa

yp
oi

nt
) P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

pa
rk

in
g 

on
ly

 p
as

t t
hi

s
po

in
t

S
ho

rt
 s

ta
y

T
ax

i

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
pa

rk
in

g
D

is
ab

le
d 

ba
ys

In
d.

 V
al

ue
 w

ith
 T

yp
e+

' (
'&

S
ta

tu
s+

')'

D
is

ab
le

d 
(L

iv
e)

D
is

ab
le

d 
(P

ro
po

se
d)

D
is

ab
le

d 
(R

em
ov

ed
)

D
is

ab
le

d 
(s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y)
 (

Li
ve

)

78



P
ar

ki
ng

 s
ig

ns
In

d.
 V

al
ue

 w
ith

 ty
pe

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

C
ar

 c
lu

b

C
oa

ch
 (

sh
or

t s
ta

y)

C
oa

ch
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
 o

r 
ca

sh
)

D
is

ab
le

d

D
is

ab
le

d 
(s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y)

D
oc

to
r

E
le

ct
ric

 v
eh

ic
le

 r
ec

ha
rg

in
g

Lo
ad

in
g 

on
ly

Lo
ad

in
g 

on
ly

 (
go

od
s 

ve
hi

cl
es

)

Lo
ad

in
g 

on
ly

 (
go

od
s 

ve
hi

cl
es

) 
or

di
sa

bl
ed

M
ot

or
cy

cl
e

N
o 

lo
ad

in
g

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

(R
P

Z
)

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

an
d 

no
 lo

ad
in

g

P
ai

d 
(c

as
h)

P
ai

d 
(p

ho
ne

 o
r 

ca
sh

)

P
ai

d 
(p

ho
ne

)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

on
ly

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(c
as

h)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
 o

r
ca

sh
)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 p

ai
d 

(p
ho

ne
)

P
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
s 

or
 s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y

S
ch

oo
l k

ee
p 

cl
ea

r

S
ho

rt
 s

ta
y

W
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

n

0 
m

50
 m

10
0 

m

79



5

L

e

s

l

i

e

 

P

r

i

n

c

e

 

C

o

u

r

t

4

1

2

5

1

4

PH

4

7

1

0

6

4

5

5

4

1

2

8

2

1

0

6

t

o

7

2

8

3

8

7

2

0

2

6

 

t

o

 

3

2

3

4

1

3

2

2

4

2

6

4

4

6

2

7

5

1

6

1

8

5

6

2

4

1

7

6

0

5

2

6

3

0

2

1

 

t

o

 

2

5

a

2

6

5

0

7

5

9

1

1

5

1

1

5

2

5

B

u

r

g

e

s

s

 

P

a

r

k

1

2

1

4

1

9

PH

3

7

t

o

t

o

1

8

4

5

5

3

 

t

o

 

5

7

3

5

5

4

4

3

3

6

1

Newman

3

1

L

a

n

g

l
a

n

d

 

H

o

u

s

e

t

o
E

v

e

l

i

n

a

 

M

a

n

s

i

o

n

s

8

1

9

1

4

5

4

b

House

3

.

0

7

C

C

H

I

U

M

V

H

R

H

I

U

C

M

V

H

R

M

V

H

R

T

U

R

N

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

L

E

F

T

S
L
O

W

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

LEGEND:

Existing Highway Boundary

Proposed Highway Boundary

Street signage

S1 (4)

Existing Street Lighting Column

Sign ref

Existing Street signage

Ex. S1

Proposed Street Lighting Column

Location ref

Rev.Drawing No.

Project No. Drawing File

DateApprovedDateCheckedDateDrawn

Drawing Title

Project Title

Appd.Chkd.DrawnAmendmentDateRev.

Client

Scale Orig Size Dimensions

LAND & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING LTD

18 Frogmore Road

Hemel Hempstead

Hertfordshire

HP3 9RT

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 (0) 1442 437500

Fax: +44 (0) 1442 437550

Email:  info@rsk.co.uk

Web:    www.rsk.co.uk

K
:
\
1

3
1

9
4

7
 
-
 
E

D
M

U
N

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
E

L
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
2

0
1

3
\
G

R
A

P
H

\
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

\
P

H
A

S
E

 
2

 
-
 
E

D
M

U
N

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
D

O
N

E
\
5

0
-
1

4
 
-
 
S

I
G

N
A

G
E

 
A

N
D

 
R

O
A

D
M

A
R

K
I
N

G
S

 
(
F

I
N

A
L

)
.
D

W
G

EDMUND STREET

ELMINGTON

SITE WIDE

PARKING RESTRICTION

PROPOSALS

131947

50-20

AM Sept 16 GT Sept 16 GT Sept 16

P4

50-20.dwg

1:250 A0 Metres

E

D

M

U

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

O

U

T

H

A

M

P

T

O

N

 

W

A

Y

N

O

T

L

E

Y

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

E

A

R

S

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

C

A

S

P

I

A

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

N

E

W

 

C

H

U

R

C

H

 

R

O

A

D

D

R

A

Y

C

O

T

T

 

C

L

O

S

E

D

U

R

F

E

Y

 

P

L

A

C

E

E

D

M

U

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

A

M

 

K

I

N

G

 

W

A

L

K

N

O

T

L

E

Y

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S

O

U

T

H

A

M

P

T

O

N

 

W

A

Y

D

O

B

S

O

N

 

W

A

L

K

C

A

S

P

I

A

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

Double yellow lines to terminate

at start of Zig-Zag markings for

zebra crossing

Double yellow lines to tie back

into existing roadmarkings at this

point

Double yellow lines to tie back

into existing roadmarkings at this

point

Limit of public highway, road

become private beyond this point

D

O

B

S

O

N

 

W

A

L

K

P3 06.09.16 Issued For Technical Approval TWR GT GT

NOTES

1. This drawing shows the proposed parking restrictions to be imposed

on the Edmund Street development site.

2. For specific details respective to the proposed roadmarkings and

signage to be installed, refer to RSK 50-14 series drawings.

3. For details respective to the information show on the signage plate

of each sign, refer to RSK drawing no. 50-14-06.

Double yellow lines to terminate

at this point

Double yellow lines

to terminate at this point

P

r

i

v

a

t

e

A

c

c

e

s

s

Double yellow

continuous lines to

terminate at highway

boundary

Double yellow lines to tie back

into existing roadmarkings at this

point

Double yellow lines

to terminate at this

point

New double yellow

lines to terminate at

start of on street

parking bay

New double yellow

lines to terminate at

start of inset

parking bay

P

r

i

v

a

t

e

A

c

c

e

s

s

Double yellow lines

to terminate at

highway boundary

Ex.S3

Ex.S1& 2

Ex.S5

Ex.S4

S1 (1)

S1 (2)

S1 (3)

S2 (2)

S2 (1)

Ex.S6

S1 (4)

S1 (5)

S1 (6)

S1 (7)

S2 (3)

Ex.S7

S1 (8)

S1 (9)

S2 (4)

S2 (5)

Ex.S11

Ex.S4

Ex.S13

Ex.S14

Ex.S12

Ex.S15

Ex.S16

Ex.S4

Ex.S4

S1 (10)

S1 (11)

S1 (12)

P4 07.09.16 Issued For Technical Approval.

Sign references added to layout.

TWR GT GT

APPENDIX 3
80



APPENDIX 481



82



83



84



Camberwell Fields ‐ Parking Space Allocations

General Needs Spaces
Address Tenure size

1 73 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
2 71 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
3 69 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
4 67 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
5 65 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
6 63 Edmund Street, Camberwell. SE5 7NF RENT 3B‐5P
7 1 Notley Street, Camberwell.  SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
8 3 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
9 5 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P

10 7 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
11 9 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
12 11 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
13 13 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
14 15 Notley Street, Camberwell.  SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
15 17 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
16 19 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
17 21 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
18 23 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
19 25 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
20 27 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
21 29 Notley Street, Camberwell. SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
22 31 Notley Street, Camberwell.  SE5 7PS RENT 3B‐5P
23 15 Durfey Place RENT 4B‐7P
24 16 Durfey Place RENT 4B‐7P
25 3 Mori Court, 61 Edmund Street, SE5 7FJ RENT ‐ Flat 3B‐ 6p
26 Flat 7 Leigh Court, 1 Sam King Walk, SE5 7FP Shared Ownership 2B‐4P

CAR CLUB n/a n/a

APPENDIX 5
85



W/C Spaces
Address Tenure size

1 Flat 1 Mori Court, 61 Edmund Street, SE5 7FJ RENT WC3B‐5P
2 Flat 2 Mori Court, 61 Edmund Street, SE5 7FJ RENT WC1B‐2P
3 Flat 3 Palfrey Court, 74 Edmund Street, SE5 7NR     RENT WC3B‐6P
4 14 Durfey Place, Camberwell. SE5 7QD RENT WC3B‐5P
5 Flat 1 Palfrey Court, 74 Edmund Street, SE5 7NR     S106 Shared Ownership  WC2B‐3P
6 Flat 2 Palfrey Court, 74 Edmund Street, SE5 7NR     S106 Shared Ownership  WC1B‐2P
7 Flat 1 Sunset Buildings,  76 Edmund Street, SE5 7NR S106 Shared Ownership  WC1B‐2P
8 Flat 2 Sunset Buildings, 76 Edmund Street, SE5 7NR S106 Shared Ownership  WC2B‐3P
9 Flat 5  Leigh Court, 1  Sam King Walk, SE5 7FP  Shared Ownership  WC2B‐3P

10 Flat 1 Barrett Court,1 Dobson Walk, SE5 7FL Shared ownership  WC2B‐3P

86



 
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-17
NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team. All amendments/queries

to Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

To all Members of the Community 
Council

Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)                                               
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess                   
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle                                          
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John                                                 
Councillor Sarah King             
Councillor Mark Williams                                                           
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                           

Officers
Tim Murtagh
Constitutional Officer (Community 
Councils) 2nd Floor Hub 2, 160 Tooley St. 

Grace Semakula, CCDO,
5th Floor Hub 3, 160 Tooley St

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

10

1

Others
Elizabeth Olive, Audit Commission
160 Tooley St.

Total:

Dated: 30 June 2016

1

21


	Agenda
	 [Comment...]
	5 Minutes
	10 Deputations/Petitions (if any)
	12 Community Councils Highways Capital Investment for 2015-16 and 2016-17
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	13 Local Traffic and Parking Amendments
	Appendix 1
	a
	1617Q2012_Kerfield Place_1.0

	Appendix 2
	b
	1617Q2013_Pelham Close_1.0

	Appendix 3
	c
	1617Q2014_Tower Mill Road_Camberwell_1.0

	Appendix 4

	14 Edmund Street and nearby streets - reconfiguration of existing parking arrangements
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	50-20


	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	 [Comment...]



